CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2019
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

6:00 P.M.

MINUTES

Call to Order
Mayor Evans called the Work Session of February 26, 2019, to order at 6:00 pm.
NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and to
the general public that, at this work session, the City Council may vote to go into executive
session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s
attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.03(A)(3).

Pledge of Allegiance and Mission Statement

The Council and audience recited the Pledge of Allegiance and Councilmember Aslan read the
Mission Statement of the City of Flagstaff.

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life for all.

Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other technological means.

PRESENT: ABSENT:

MAYOR EVANS

VICE MAYOR SHIMONI
COUNCILMEMBER ASLAN
COUNCILMEMBER MCCARTHY
COUNCILMEMBER ODEGAARD
COUNCILMEMBER SALAS
COUNCILMEMBER WHELAN

Public Participation

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at the
end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing to
comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the recording clerk.
When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may address the
Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public
Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting
and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes
to speak.

None
5. Review of Draft Agenda for the March 5, 2019 City Council Meeting

Citizens wishing to speak on agenda items not specifically called out by the City Council may
submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the recording clerk.

None

6. Discussion: Airport Marketing/Promoting, United Airlines Minimum Revenue Guarantee
Agreement, Air Carrier Incentive Policy, and United and American Airline Lease Agreements

Economic Vitality Director Heidi Hansen gave a presentation on airport marketing, the small
community air service revenue guarantee grant, air carrier incentive policy and American and
United Airlines lease agreements. She was joined by Grants and Contract Manager Stacey
Brechler-Knaggs, Airport Director Barney Helmick, Senior Assistant City Attorney Christina
Rubalcava, and Real Estate Manager Charity Lee. The purpose of the presentation was to
give Council a background on the airport before the regular meeting where the Flagstaff Airport
Air Carrier Incentive Policy, the Minimum Revenue Guarantee Agreement for air services
between the City and United Airlines, and the lease agreement with United Airlines will be
considered.

Highlights from the presentation included a discussion on marketing campaigns targeted to
raise enplanements. The "Always Fly First” campaign raised enplanements by 3% and the

“| always fly Flagstaff first” resulted in a 9.2% increase in enplanements. One-on-one
meetings with airlines and consultants at airline specific conferences resulted in new ideas on
how to present the airport to prospective airlines and allowed staff to design a collaborative
piece highlighting things airlines want to know. The brochure created was key in making
meetings with airline executives impactful. Staff held local presentations that allowed for
conversations to figure out needed routes for Flagstaff area residents and businesses. An
Airport Annual Report was created that included all things important to an airline and shared
with prospective airlines. All these strategies were key in attracting an additional airline at the
Flagstaff Pulliam Airport.

Stacey Brechler-Knaggs resumed the presentation and spoke about the contract with United
Airlines and the minimum revenue guarantee (MRG) agreement. She reported that in
September 2011, the City received a small community air service development grant in the
amount of $800,000. The City has received five extensions to continue the effort to market for
a new service and/or route. Starting on March 31, United Airlines will be a new service
provider and will receive the MRG for operating flights out of Flagstaff. This is the first time the
City has offered an MRG. United Airlines researched what the minimum revenue needed (MR)
per month to operate in Flagstaff is. If the actual revenue received is less than the minimum
revenue required, the City will pay the difference out of the grant funds. If United Airlines meets
their MR, they do not receive funds. If they exceed the monthly MR, they will apply that
revenue to the next month. The MRG is calculated quarterly. The MRG is available for one
year in an amount not to exceed $550,000 and The funds are 100% grant funded with no
match needed from the City. There is a termination clause of 90 days to terminate the MRG
and the lease agreement.

Councilmember Whelan thanked Ms. Brechler-Knaggs for her service and asked about the
grant. She asked if it was solely earmarked for the MRG. Ms. Brechler-Knaggs stated that it is



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

almost only available for a new airline, but that there was a little money available upfront for
marketing. The MRG term is for one year (March 31, 2019 to March 31, 2020). United Airlines
stated that they are expecting a minimum revenue of about $40,000 a month, and the MRG
will be used to meet the minimum revenue if needed. Councilmember Whelan also asked
about the term lease of 10-years. Ms. Lee will address the lease agreements later in the
presentation.

Councilmember McCarthy asked where the MRG comes from. Ms. Brechler-Knaggs stated
that the MRG is a federal grant.

Mr. Helmick explained that the process to find a new airline has been ongoing for over six
years. In that time, staff learned that a lot of airports have incentive policies. They learned
about established guidelines. Staff is strongly encouraging two more markets at the Flagstaff
airport: Los Angeles and San Francisco. The MRG, which is only for new airlines, offers the
least risk for the City. If an existing airline wanted to add an additional route, the City could
waive the landing fee as an incentive.

Councilmember Whelan asked what the City uses the landing fees for. Mr. Helmick answered
that landing fees are a revenue stream for the airport. The biggest revenue stream for the
airport is from rental cars. The least producing revenue piece comes from the landing fees.

Ms. Lee took over the presentation to address lease agreements. Staff has worked on creating
a new lease template for commercial services. They have focused on United Airlines and have
temporarily suspended the American Airlines’ lease renewal until this process is done to
ensure that both airlines have the same terms. There have been no changes thus far. The
lease term is for ten years and allows for two five-year extensions. Either party can terminate
the lease with a 90-day written notice. The rental amount per the lease is $36,000 per year for
1,027 square feet of Ticket Counter space/storage and an additional rental fee of $30.74 for
144 square feet of office space. Only American Airlines is utilizing that option at this

time. Semi-Permanent storage unit space is available for an additional rental fee of $0.34 per
square foot. The landing fee is waived for one year under an Incentive Agreement, but it is
normally $1.09 per thousand pounds of declared maximum certified gross landing weight of
aircraft. There is a rate adjustment of 2% increase annually on the $36,000 base rent per year
on the lease anniversary. The City agreed to pay utilities (water, gas, sewer electric) per the
lease, however the airlines are responsible for all taxes and fuel costs.

Ms. Hansen summed up the presentation and explained the goals of the presentation were to
explain the: marketing successes, the MRG, the lease agreement, and revenue generation.
She also expressed that the benefits of having a great transportation system in Flagstaff is to
not just expand tourism, but to also assist businesses, such as telecommuters and small
business, with east coast connections. It will also assist with competition and capture lost
revenue. Currently 80% of the commercial airline market is driving to Phoenix for flights.
Adding a new airline and increasing service routes will increase the number of flights to
Phoenix and will hopefully cut costs to the consumer.

Vice Mayor Shimoni thanked staff for the work and is excited about the agreement and about
flying out of Flagstaff.

Councilmember Aslan commented that he thinks that there is an opportunity cost in flying
versus driving due to the carbon footprint and would like to see offsets for carbon. He asked if
there were any direct flights to Tucson planned. Mr. Helmick stated that Tucson is not a top 25
destination and it would be difficult to get a flight over a major hub like Phoenix. There are over
300 destinations now available with only one layover provided by the new routes.
Councilmember Aslan asked if there had been any sound impact studies in the neighboring
communities. Mr. Helmick replied that there was a study done in 2008 when prop planes,



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

which are louder, were prevalent. The new commercial air service change may increase
commercial flights by about 2,000 flights a day. Councilmember Aslan stated that he had not
noticed a change in the noise level in his neighborhood, which borders the airport.

Councilmember Whelan stated that she loves flying out of the Flagstaff airport and thanked
airport staff for their positive attitude.

Ms. Hansen stated that additional signage will be added to the airport to mitigate traffic. An
additional restroom and beverage service will be available after the security checkpoint to
increase security efficiency.

Councilmember Odegaard stated that he was looking to book a flight with the new routes. He
asked about the competitiveness of the prices of flights. Mr. Helmick stated that the
competition is there right now and that there are sweet spots to buy tickets between six to
eight weeks before your flight. He purchased a flight for $236 to Monterey, CA.

7. Update to the Work Programs for Comprehensive Planning and Development Codes
(Zoning, Subdivision, and Related Codes)

Zoning Code Manger Daniel Symer, Comprehensive Planning Manager Sara Dechter, and
Planning Manager Tiffany Antol reviewed the updates to the work programs and the program
updates. Ms. Antol stated that the last time an update was given to Council was in January
2018. The objectives were: to increase familiarity with the Work Program and Development
Codes; introduce Daniel Symer as the new Zoning Code Manager; review projects and plans;
and receive feedback on program priorities from Council.

Mr. Symer thanked the Council and led the first section of the presentation. He stated that he
has been in planning for 21 years and is happy to be a part of the City of Flagstaff. He
explained that the Zoning Code Manager lives in the Implementation zone of the planning
pyramid and works to make the community a better place. Implementation is based off the
zoning codes, the Regional Plan, and the policies currently in place and Mr. Symer's role is
to ensure that policies can be implemented. He explained the primary responsibilities of the
Zoning Code Manager adn that he works as the Zoning Code Administrator for Development
Codes which includes Intra-City Coordination and Assistance, Public Assistance, and working
as the Board of Adjustment Liaison. He also works on the development of code amendments;
and works with project management including variance applications and zoning verification.

Mr. Symer gave an overview of Zoning Code Manager accomplishments which included: an
amendment to the conditional use permit approval process, West University Drive entrance
sign district, comprehensive review of the zoning code to identify inconsistences, coordinating
with the City Clerk’s office and the city’s codifier to correct codification errors and
inconsistencies, and drafted code revisions. The code was vetted against the existing code by
a consultant before Mr. Symer came on board, which was a great help to him when he
started. The code review created three updates to the current codes. There are currently two
codes with the codification company that are being published and one with legal at the time of
this update.

Mr. Symer reviewed the Planning & Zoning Projects Timeline and gave examples of individual
projects that makeup the high-level program description. The codes will be reviewed based off
the established timeline that he presented and reviewed for Council. He gave an example of
the lighting code when discussing the implementation issues in the projects timeline. He stated
that codes need updates to get caught up with technology and that all the codes crossover
each other. As they work on each plan, a code may be affected by those changes in multiple
plans. Having an overlap in the projects timeline helps focus the project all the way through



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

and the plan is contingent on funding a consultant.

Mr. Symer reviewed the Zoning Code Program key points. He touched on the existing code
implementation and enforcement issues and reiterated that the proposed work program
timeline is reliant on funding the existing consultant

Mayor Evans commented that over the years she has asked for the Regional Plan to be linked
to the Zoning Code for the lay-person to be able to use. She would like to see that
implemented. For example, she would like to see the high-density areas in the Regional Plan
link to the high-density zoning codes. Mr. Symer stated that it is challenging because there is
an outside codifier. He suggested linking the area in the Regional Plan to a main page that
has a directory for the codes. Mayor Evans stated that she has seen this in other
municipalities. She feels that this would be very useful to the community.

Vice Mayor Shimoni expressed that he is looking forward to the work ahead and excited to see
the accomplishments. He advocated to place High Occupancy Housing (HOH) and bed ratios
as a top priority and asked where they currently lie in the timeline. Mr. Symer stated that the
priority is high, and HOH is listed in the administrative modifications. He would like to tackle it
this year, potentially starting in the summer. He also has the bed ratios as a priority project.

Councilmember Whelan added that it is good to have Mr. Symer on board. She appreciates
Mr. Symer taking the time to work to change the code only once. She stated that she was
partially elected based on her stances on zoning codes that allowed for buildings that are not
appropriate in the area they were built that brought parking issues to the community. She
would like to complete the zoning updates for the “bigger fires” soon. She asked how to do this
in a timely way. Mr. Symer responded that parking is on his list as a priority. He is working on
getting a base-line on parking and has handed off a big chunk of that for review. Parking and
dwelling units are a priority for him. The consultant will need to be on board because it takes a
lot of field work to complete the studies needed and Mr. Symer believes having an
independent analysis would be beneficial for the community. The 60 foot height restriction has
been in place for 50 years and needs to be addressed. He asked that specific zoning concerns
be sent to the City Manager. Councilmember Whelan stated that redoing a map of the zoning
code would be something the Council would be ready to tackle today. She would love to see
movement forward and is afraid that the changes to the code are being put off. Mr. Symer
stated that there are some areas that may be able to move forward soon. Councilmember
Whelan asked if Mr. Symer could be the delegator of the sections to consultants. Mr. Symer
stated that this is the idea and he will be focusing on the administrative modifications. The idea
is to delegate the assignments and get the base-line information collected first.

Councilmember McCarthy stated that the most common concern he received when
campaigning was land use issues. He stated that the push back against inappropriate land
use needs to be harder. When budget time comes, he stated that he believes that the
Planning section needs to have additional staff since the workload is demanding and more
help may be needed to move along faster. He stated that the headcount may need to be
increased.

Vice Mayor Shimoni addressed the “little brush fires” and stated that until those are dealt with
he does not know why the focus should be on cleaning up. Mr. Symer stated that the
amendments he is working on are to minimize the City’s vulnerability. The redundancy will be
reduced at the same time.

Mayor Evans clarified that the reason that changes are taking longer than the Council would
like to see is to ensure that a change to code does not exacerbate other areas of the code.

Councilmember Odegaard thanked Mr. Symer. He stated that the Zoning Code booklet is



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

thicker than the budget book. He added that he hopes for an element of education for the
community, especially on lighting, rather than enforcement first.

Ms. Sara Dechter resumed the presentation. She stated that the Comprehensive Planning
Program encompasses the Regional Plan area and the specific plans area of the planning
pyramid. Ms. Dechter does project management for area plans and specific plans; inter- and
intra-government coordination and Regional Plan implementation; and Regional Plan
amendments and development application review. She works with the Current Planner to
make sure analysis is consistent with the Regional Plan. For the next two years, Ms. Dechter’s
focus will be re-centered on the census. The census, which occurs every ten years, increases
the distribution of time she spends on inter- and intra-government coordination. Ms. Dechter
shared her other duties as well.

She also covered the Comprehensive Planning accomplishments, including completion of the
High Occupancy Housing Plan, the public participation opportunities for the Southside
Community Plan, the formation of a joint Census Team, and the 4th Regional Plan Annual
Report. Ms. Dechter shared the Planning & Zoning Projects Timeline for the Comprehensive
Planning Program work. She anticipates that the Census and the Bus Rapid Transit Program
will impact the timeline and has adjusted the timeline accordingly in this presentation.

Mayor Evans asked if other planners are involved in these projects. Ms. Dechter responded
that there is an Associate Planner and that he takes on some projects for her. Ms. Dechter is
the Comprehensive Planner and is assisted by the Associate Planner. About 60% of the
Associate Planner's time is dedicated to this program. She also has two interns. There is not a
specific Neighborhood Planner.

Mayor Evans inquired about the La Plaza Vieja plan. Ms. Dechter replied that the La Plaza
Vieja neighborhood requested a zoning code change that creates a character overlay for
home design. The neighborhood wanted the City to consider the character overlay for the
historic district. Mayor Evans clarified her understanding that Ms. Dechter’s department works
to complete the plan to bring it to Council for possible approval. If approved, the plans go back
to Zoning and other departments. Ms. Dechter added that the La Plaza Vieja plan included
park improvements, transportation, and infrastructure improvements. All of the projects have
come from the neighborhood plan.

Mayor Evans inquired on who monitors the work. Ms. Dechter stated that her department
monitors the work and reports it in the Annual Report given in June and at neighborhood
association meetings. She gave examples of grants that were received by the neighborhood
associations. She stated that if there was a neighborhood planner, that the planner would be
able to focus on grants. Mayor Evans stated that she wanted to know how the process worked
and that only about 5% of Ms. Dechter’s time is dedicated to neighborhood planning.

Ms. Dechter continued the presentation and addressed neighborhood planning and discussed
community trust, community cohesiveness, and capacity building within a community.

Councilmember Whelan asked if neighborhood plans can take years to complete how that
reconciles with neighborhood trust. She stated that in her experience that the connections are
integral, but with Ms. Dechter’s time being so restricted, how does that work. Ms. Dechter
stated that it is a concern and that the Southside Neighborhood is a different type of project.
They have asked for staff to slow down and do a four month pause with the community’s
support. She values having the community involvement in creating a timeline. Right now, the
Southside plan is getting ready to hold an open house on March 30 which will kick off a
planning session. It was impossible to move forward with the plan without a deep
understanding of the neighborhood's history. There are 64 single business in the Southside
neighborhood and 32 businesses responded to a survey.



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

Ms. Dechter continued the discussion on the Southside Neighborhood Plan. The plan would
be delivered by December 2019 at the earliest or by February 2020 at the latest. However,
there was a pause in the Southside plan to start early implantation including: parking and
street management on Fountaine Street, addition of at least six new streets into the residential
Park Flag parking program with three more in the queue, handicap accessible on-street
parking, storm water regulation education (especially insurance), bulk trash education and
operations, communication with NAU students, and trash clean-ups with sustainability staff.
Mayor Evans and Councilmember Whelan did a walking tour with staff in the neighborhood.

Ms. Dechter covered the Census 2020 Coordination. She stated that there is a new
recruitment coordinator located in Flagstaff and that the lease for an office will hopefully be
signed soon. Flagstaff and Coconino County have more applications than Tucson and Phoenix
per positions, which shows that outreach is working well. One of the challenges of hiring for
the census is that background checks are about 12 weeks behind due to the Federal
government shutdown. Mayor Evans suggested that the City’s Indigenous Coordinator might
be able to assist with census recruitment for Navajo speakers. Ms. Dechter informed Council
that NAU’s Spring Communications capstone project is designed to work on campus outreach
strategy. New technology will be implemented in the 2019 census, and a Volunteer and Event
Coordinator will be hired on a temporary basis. The 2020 outreach is a City-wide priority.

Mayor Evans asked why Ms. Dechter’s department oversees the census rather than someone
who has their sole purpose as the census, perhaps someone jointly employed with the
County. She has heard complaints that neighborhood planning and implementation of plans
takes too long, and she is concerned that the census will pull the department away from City
priorities. City Manager Goodrich stated that the Census comes up only once every ten years.
She also stated that Ms. Dechter picked up the torch of the census, and that her expertise has
been instrumental in the continuation of the project with changes in staff and duties. Mayor
Evans would like to see if there is a better way to handle the distribution of duties. Ms.
Goodrich and Ms. Dechter will look to see if there is other staff that can assist. Ms. Dechter
went to Maricopa County for census training and requested that census training be brought to
northern Arizona since it had never been held here. She stated that because of her education,
she has expanded on the needs of the census. Mayor Evans stated that she feels that if the
census is this important, that there needs to be more staff to assist. Councilmember Whelan
added that Ms. Dechter is the perfect person to deal with the Census. Mayor Evans stated
that if Ms. Dechter is the perfect person for all things, it limits her ability to accomplish goals.
Other staff may be able to step up and work on these projects.

Vice Mayor Shimoni asked about the canvassing that was done in the Southside. Ms. Dechter
replied that staff went door-to-door with a survey and staff met one-on-one with families. The
findings were reported in June. There was a public workshop that attracted 30 people which
was not considered successful. It was determined that there needed to be more information
about the demographics of the neighborhood and that canvassing would be the best way to
collect the information. Vice Mayor Shimoni also asked about the turnout at community events.
Ms. Dechter stated that the attendance was variable. The attendance of the workshops was
between 18 and 45 attendees per event. Going door-to-door was more successful for staff
than the workshops. Vice Mayor Shimoni asked what efforts were done for advertising the
events. The zoning code requires a physical mailer to about 700 addresses. The mailings
were expensive, so staff tried to create a document that advertised multiple events. Social
media was also utilized. One to two mini-videos were produced. Door hangers were effective
as well. The required notices also include an advertisement in the paper and a sign at the
physical location (Murdoch Center). Vice Mayor Shimoni asked about the cost of the mailing
and inquired about the social media costs. Ms. Dechter replied that she had a $45 budget for
social media and she heard that most people learned about the meetings through mailers and
door hangers. She did not have the cost of the mailers on hand. Mayor Evans stated that the



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

meeting she attended had a lot of students, but not a lot of older people. She felt that the older
people and families who have been in the neighborhood for multiple generations were not
reached because they are not available through social media. In her opinion, the most
effective method of outreach in the Southside neighborhood is door-to-door canvassing and
door hangers. Vice Mayor Shimoni advocated for mini-videos to summarize the meetings and
asked about the facilitation support. He was curious about the cost of the facilitation and Ms.
Dechter was not sure on the cost. He also asked if there are plans regarding the J.W. Powell
corridor. Mr. Symer stated that it is on the budget list. He wants to tackle the subdivision
ordinance to address that area specifically.

Mayor Evans called a five-minute break at 8:05 pm and called the meeting back to order at
8:09 pm.

Jesse Dominguez added a public comment. He stated that he is proud of La Plaza Vieja
Neighborhood Specific Plan. The new park at Old Town is a point of pride for the
neighborhood. He thanked City staff, City Council, Ms. Dechter, and everyone else as well for
their work in his community. He stated that the La Plaza Vieja neighborhood is willing to help
with the Southside Plan and that they have a lot in common with the Southside neighborhood.
He stated that the plan is working and that there are professional people and families returning
to the neighborhood. He had a shuttle driver pick him up yesterday at his home and stated that
the driver was impressed with the community cohesiveness. He again thanked the City and
staff.

8. Continued support of prior council resolutions supporting the ban on mining around the
Grand Canyon.

City Manager Goodrich stated that the Grand Canyon Trust is traveling to Washington D.C. for
a legislative trip and has asked Council to renew their support on the ban on mining around the
Grand Canyon. Ms. Goodrich read the titles of Resolution 2017-32 and Resolution 2018-06
that supported the temporary ban of uranium mining around the Grand Canyon.

The following individuals addressed the Council in support of the ban on mining around the
Grand Canyon.

¢ Steve Finch, representing FLRTA
e Joe Shannon
¢ Roger Clark

Comments received included:

e Supportive of restricting mining for uranium at the Grand Canyon

¢ Representative Thorpe has introduced an initiative to open mining everywhere
regardless of location and FLRTA is not in support of that.

e Supportive of Representative Thorpe’s initiative to clean up mining tailings.

¢ Asked Council to consider another resolution to support the initiative by Representative
Grijalva that would permanently ban mining at the Grand Canyon.

Mayor Evans stated that the City Manager is looking for affirmation for the ban of mining
around the Grand Canyon. A majority of Council stated that they are in support of the ban of
mining around the Grand Canyon.

Councilmember McCarthy stated that he would like to ban transportation of uranium. If any
transportation of uranium does occur, then he would like to ensure that transportation happens
in sealed trucks rather than trucks covered with tarps. He would like to explore this in the



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

10.

future as a new resolution.

Mayor Evans stated that Council is in support of creating a resolution to support
Representative Grijalva’s bill. Ms. Goodrich will place that on a future agenda.

Discussion/Direction: Current Issues Before Arizona Legislature and Federal Issues.

Acting Assistant to the City Manager Cliff Bryson gave a presentation on a state legislative
update that covered. The City's State Lobbyist Richard Travis joined the presentation via
phone. Mr. Bryson provided a negative impact list and a list of good bills and bad bills.
Highlights were:

e Over 3,000 bills submitted this session

¢ Bills are now in cross reference (Bills that were in the Senate are now in the House and

vice versa)
e Mr. Bryson reviewed the negative impact bills and the “good and bad” bill list.

Mayor Evans inquired about HB 2455, the State Aviation Fund and why it is an issue. Mr.
Travis answered that the State Aviation Fund has been swept for several years and that has
been a problem. The bill would stop the sweep of the aviation funds and allow municipalities to
apply for the FAA match which is a 10 to 1 match for state funds to federal funds when there is
state money available. The funds would be used to support airports. By sweeping that money,
the onus for repairs at airports is passed onto the cities.

Vice Mayor Shimoni asked about the minimum wage reduction for students and Mr. Travis
stated that he does not think that bill stands a chance this year.

Mayor Evans asked again about the Aviation Bill and if staff is concerned. Ms. Hansen stated
that the aviation funding could help with major infrastructure. Mayor Evans asked for more
information on this bill so that Council could advocate more on it. Mr. Travis stated that
Representative Campbell from Prescott created an aviation caucus and that he would be more
than happy to attend that and push this issue more.

Councilmember Odegaard asked about SB 1225. He asked if the House will see it to vote on
it. Mr. Travis does not believe that the bill will see the light of day due to the politics of that
Chamber.

Vice Mayor Shimoni asked what the next steps are moving forward and what the general
timeline is. Mr. Bryson stated that staff would like to keep Council up to date on these bills as
soon as possible. If there is action that Council would need to take, they will be able to move
quickly with these updates. Mr. Travis added that if there are any specific questions, send
them to Mr. Bryson or the City Manager and they will get them to him right away. Mayor Evans
added that a delegation will be traveling to Phoenix in the future and Mr. Travis added that this
date will be determined.

Councilmember Whelan added that after the initial visit, a thank you note with two or three

items they discussed should be sent to the legislative representatives. Mr. Bryson will draft a
thank you letter.

Public Participation

None.



Flagstaff Council Work Session February 26, 2019

1.

Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; future agenda item
requests

Vice Mayor Shimoni attended a Census 2020 meeting with Ms. Dechter and members of the
County. It was an impressive meeting with about $75,000 being spent by each entity on the
Census.

Councilmember Aslan reported that he attended the NAIPTA Board meeting and it was a great
conversation. He stated that he is excited to work with NAITPA. He also stated his
appreciation to the City and staff for surviving Snowpocalypse 2019. He also feels that
pedestrian safety may need to be discussed in the future in regards to snow and inclement
weather events.

Councilmember Odegaard also thanked City Staff for the work on cleaning up the snow. He
was shoveling snow off the roof of his store when Ms. Goodrich called him for his signature on
the emergency declaration. He thanked Councilmember McCarthy for attending a Boy Scout
event with him.

Councilmember Salas stated that she joined the Mayor, Councilmember Odegaard, and
Councilmember Whelan at the state legislative trip and that it was an honor. She thanked the
staff who presented that evening and the Streets Department and staff that worked the snow
event. She also thanked the Flagstaff Police Department for their work during the snow event.
She is proud to have seen Flagstaff's Mayor at the Grand Canyon event in support of uranium
mining ban.

City Manager Goodrich also thanked the Streets Department as well as the Airport
Department and Parks Department for the snow removal.

Mayor Evans also thanked staff for their work. She also stated that she went on a trip to
Mexico City with Business Attraction Manager Gail Jackson to advocate for business
opportunities with Mexico. It was a fascinating trip and Mayor Evans stated that Gail Jackson
is a wonderful representative for the City of Flagstaff.

12. Adjournment
The Flagstaff City Council Work Session of February 26, 2019, adjourned at 9:09 p.m.
MAYOR
ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

10



